
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

10 June 2019 
 

TO MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Dear Councillor 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the  

Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee on 
Tuesday, 18th June, 2019 at 6.30 pm 

in the Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 

PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 

Membership:  

Chairman: Councillor Judith Skinner 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Tracey Abbott 
 Councillors Alistair Arundell, Alison Austin, Peter Bedford, 

Shaun Blackman, George Cornah, Deborah Evans, Paul Goodale, 
Neill Hastie and Judith Welbourn 
 

 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B.   MINUTES                                                                                         (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

C.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Thursday 13 June 2019. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

1   WORK PROGRAMME AND INTRODUCTION TO THE COMMITTEE  
 
To allow Committee Members to construct their future work programme 
                                                                                                               
                                                                                                             (Pages 7 - 60) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone Number 01205 
314226.    email:  karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

5 March 2019 

Present: Councillor Judith Skinner (Chairman),  (Vice-Chairman), Councillors 
Richard Austin, Colin Brotherton, Jonathan Noble, Sue Ransome and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
In attendance:  
 

Officers –  
Head of Place and Space, Principal Museum, Arts & Heritage Officer and Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
118   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were tabled by Councillor Peter Bedford with Councillor Richard 
Austin substituting.  Further apologies were noted from Councillors Tom Ashton, Barrie 
Pierpoint and Yvonne Stevens with no substitute members. 
 
119   MINUTES 

 
With the agreement of the committee the Chairman signed the minutes of the previous 
meeting 
 
120   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were noted. 
 
121   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No public questions were tabled. 
 
 
122   THE PILGRIMS 2020 AND ALLIED OPPORTUNITIES (UPDATE) 

 
 
The Principal Museum, Arts & Heritage Officer presented the report to the committee 
confirming it was tabled as an update on Local, National and Regional activity in respect 
of the 20/20 Pilgrims anniversary initiatives.  
An initial report had been tabled to the committee in January 2018 which had been well 
received and where it had been agreed future updates be produced to allow the 
committee to monitor the progress of the events. A further report had been presented to 
Cabinet in February 2018 which sought support of specific funding to enable a number 
of projects to progress.   Cabinet had approved the funding requests as the events 
fulfilled the corporate objectives of Prosperity; People and Place. 
 
Providing a brief outline the officer advised that the aim of the projects was to directly 
enhance and build on the placemaking and placebranding of Boston.  Improvements to 
the towns’ public realm enhanced its character and helped to shape its regeneration.  
The projects would complement other initiatives which would result in improving Boston 
as a visitor destination. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B.



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 March 2019 
 

 
The Mayflower 400 group which had been led by Plymouth City Council had secured a 
£500k grant from Visit England in May 2016 to promote the national Mayflower Pilgrims 
story overseas:  during 2018 the Department for Culture, Media and Sport agreed a 
similar amount to allow continuation of activity into 2019.  Boston had directly benefitted 
from many national and international coach group travel operators visiting Boston, many 
of whom had included Boston within their itineraries for 2020.  Travel journalists and 
bloggers had also been to the town and had produced positive copy of the towns’ 
historic offer.  Furthermore Boston was being promoted as a destination at world travel 
fairs by the Mayflower project who had developed a visitor ‘prospectus’ which promoted 
the destinations within the story with Boston featuring well in both the narrative and 
visually.  Members were advised that promotion of Boston as a quintessential English 
market town had increased significantly due to the liaisons with national and 
international coach companies who were now including Boston on their itineraries; Kuoni 
also had Boston on its itineraries and the travel bloggers were extremely influential. 
Boston was the 3rd highest profile destination amongst the Mayflower 400 destinations 
with good quality coverage of the town in the National Programme Announcement 
supporting the importance of the town.  Visitor interest levels varied and flexibility of 
visitor packages would be required to accommodate not only visitors with a general 
overall interest, but also those who may require a more bespoke package providing a 
more personal and special experience.  Many overseas visitors required exclusive 
packages and Boston’s tourism team needed to be fully aware of that. 
 
Plymouth had nationally led the development of a bid to secure Arts Council England 
(ACE) funding to support artistic development of an ‘Illuminate’ event in their region.  If 
successful it could help reinforce Boston’s own ‘Illuminate’ event which had been 
delivered successfully over the last five years at the towns Christmas events. It was 
directly linked to the Pilgrims and Boston had been one of the first places to develop the 
initiative with the help of Transported (and Arts Council England funded local arts 
partnerships) with local school children attending the lantern making workshops and it 
was important that the limited resources and capacity that had delivered this project 
were recognised as maximising benefit through partnership working.  It was noted that 
Bassetlaw as a part of the Roots region had been successful in securing £600k funding 
from the HLF in respect of the Pilgrim Story.  They had a significant cash match for their 
project and had employed a member of staff to work up their aspirations.   
 
Members were asked to recognise that whilst 2020 was important 2030 was equally so 
and in particular the importance of Boston’s maritime history. 
 
Referencing Boston specific projects the officer advised that a BID for funding of £60k 
had been submitted to build on the HLF funded Explore and Discover project.  It had 
been proposed to deliver the project in two stages with the first prioritising activities for 
Pilgrim specific resources ready for early 2020:  the second was continuing to develop 
wider American maritime and local histories to commemorate the connections for all 
audiences. 
 
Boston Borough Council had made a commitment to match fund with £10k to support 
the project and a further £10k had been secured through Lincolnshire County Council.    
The programme in total would cost £80k. 
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 March 2019 

 

Moving on to the development of the ‘Illuminate’ programme members were advised the 
council continued to work with the ACE funded Transported arts programme and they 
looked to commission more ambitious activity in the annual Illuminate event.   Officers 
were currently planning the next two years events and were looking to submit a bid to 
ACE to enable larger scale commissioning to make a larger impact, particularly in 2020.  
Monies to support the development of Illuminate had been made available from the 
Controlling Migration Fund with a separate £10k match funded by Boston Borough 
Council.  Whilst the 2020 parade could include a ‘national moment’ when all destinations 
would become ‘one’, that event would run alongside Boston’s own event.  The event for 
2020 was being considered with the possibility that the route could be changed to align 
with the original Pilgrim’s route, from the Toll Bar, past the Guildhall on towards Fishtoft. 
 
Addressing the Pilgrim and American events the Officer advised that they were building 
in where possible, Pilgrim and American themes into the existing events programme 
which was well developed.  Promotion of events would be through the Mayflower 400 
programme of activities and could include the 1940’s weekend and the farming event, 
along with other historical events which would represent American influences and 
Pilgrim connections.  It was very important that the influences taken from Boston UK and 
implemented into Boston Massachusetts be recognised and highlighted, including the 
setting up of the school system in line with the Boston Grammar School and the 
governance settings which were aligned to those in Boston UK.   The Guildhall would be 
hosting its own programme of events with an American themed content alongside an 
event in respect of both the Pilgrims and the Cotton Congregation. 
 
The Officer proceeded to advise on the ‘Structures on the Edge’ project confirming that 
artists briefs had been developed and issued with responses from national and 
internationally known artists shortlisted with interviews having taken place.  However, 
due to its location and the vicinity being re-profiled due to engineering works in respect 
of the Boston Barrier, the structure had not had design finalised and the bid submission 
to support the project had thus not been able to be developed:  following meetings with 
the Environment Agency and the advice given by them, it appeared the structure would 
need to be on a jetty located to a position seaward of the bank, which would be slightly 
further away from the memorial site and  would be seaward of the bank and visible by 
both site users and river traffic using the Haven. 
 
An additional scheme aligned to the Structures on the Edge project was the six large 
scale redundant maritime bouys’ and again artist’s briefs had been worked up with 
significant responses from a range of artists. It was intended to place the bouys at key 
locations in and around the town presenting a trail for the public to follow.  (at this point 
in the proceeding examples of the artist’s work were shown)  Suggested sites for the 
bouys included one either side of the Haven Bridge; one being located at the Black 
Sluice; one at the entrance to the new footbridge on entering the town and the other two 
potentially in the town centre.    Funding for the bouys was initially £14k match funding 
from Boston Big Local through a service level agreement with Boston In Bloom.  The 
Council had through its existing budgets agreed to support with a contribution of £1k.  
Following work with the Environment Agency in respect of exploring investing in the arts, 
in September 2018 they agreed to contribute an extra £14k to allow another bouy to be 
sited close to the barrier scheme.    
Additional bouys sourced direct by the Council would require further work and 
agreement to site in an allied project to continue to improve public realm and reinforce 
Boston’s maritime association. 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 March 2019 
 

   
Noting the example showing mosaic work, the officer referred members to other public 
realm within the town and in particular the areas of Petticote Lane and Dolphin Lane and 
advised that, as with the Boston Wood Carver’s group whose activities grew following 
similar work, similar opportunities could arise from the production of the bouys and the 
mosaic groups who participated. 
 
Committee were then advised that a number of enhancements were being planned 
Boston Railway Station.  As with the bouys artist’s had already been contacted and one 
had been commissioned to improve the station ambience and welcome, as well as 
increasing the provision of interpretation at the site.  The Community Rail Partnership 
was working with others linked to the 2020 anniversary and had arranged a stand at 
Kings Cross in May 2019 to promote the destinations as places to visit by train  Boston 
would be one such destination and would have representation at the stand.   
 
Furthermore Boston had been asked to join forces with the Poacher Line in April 2020 at 
Kings Cross station for a day, to provide more information specific to Boston and its links 
to America.  
 
Committee comment and questioning followed which included (it is noted that on 

conclusion of the committee members comments, representatives from Fishtoft Parish Council 

also tabled questions and comment):  *There was significant repetition of commenting on 
which has been condensed for these minutes. 
 
Responding to a members questions the officer confirmed that the design was still only 
at concept stage and no decision had been made in respect of final design on any of the 
bouys.  Addressing the members question for the delay in the installation of the 
statement art at the memorial at Fishtoft and it not being in place by 2020, the officer 
advised that it would indeed now need to be on a jetty structure riverside and not as had 
initially been expected, at the memorial site itself due to the changes in the riverbank 
walls.  He confirmed that the project was being project managed by LCC and in 
partnership with BBC and Transported and that until the refinement of the final plans 
had been received the artist solutions to the engineering of the foundations of the 
structure was on hold.  These final plans were needed for incorporation into the bid to 
Arts Council England. 
 
A member voiced strong concerns at the lack of Christianity involved in the celebrations, 
stating quite strongly he felt the reason for the event evolved from the persecution of the 
pilgrims and John Cotton in their quest to preach and live as Christians:  the reason for 
their leaving Fishtoft to head to Plymouth and then onto America was to allow them to 
live as they wished without the persecution.  None of the religious element which was at 
the heart of the reason for the event was mentioned.   The lack of respect for the 
people’s faith, which was so important, was sadly lacking making the celebrations 
almost Paganistic.   The officer advised that the religious element had not been 
forgotten about in the overall celebrations.  The HFL project proposal looked to develop 
interpretive schemes that reflected reasons for the migration and religious intolerance.  
The schemes ere also conscious of, and designed to be complimentary to, interpreative 
development taking part in St. Botoloph’s Church HLF funded redevelopment where the 
religious aspects would be explored in depth. 
 
 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 March 2019 

 

 
 
Stating he had been at a recent meeting of the steering committee for a heritage 
conference which had a focus on Boston’s American connections which was tling plac in 
September, a member advised it was oversubscribed already.  He further suggested the 
following ideas for consideration within the celebrations: 
 

 Use of illumination on buildings throughout the town 
 Use of Shodfriars Hall  
 Engage new councillors after the May election in the activities and make them 

aware of what was happening and encourage their participation. 
 Make more use of the strong interest the Americans’ have in genealogy as a tool 

to encourage visitors.  In particular the residents of Boston Massachusetts and 
the surrounding areas of the early settlers. 

 The Boston Hanse Big Dig would be happening from April to June 2019 focusing 
on revealing the medieval past of Boston. 

 Had consideration been given to using any of the £11million funding from the 
barrier? 
 

Whilst the member confirmed he only wanted notation and consideration of the 
suggestions, the officer did confirm that use of illumination over buildings had been used 
in past Christmas events across the stump and was being considered for this event. 
 
Following the comments of the member in respect of the lack of religious content, a 
member suggested that once the Statement Art piece was in place at the mouth of the 
river, that it include the relevance of religion in 1607 and its overriding impact on the 
event. 
 
Representation was received from Fishtoft Parish Council: 
 
Stating that she sympathised with the comments of the member in respect of the lack of 
religious content, a parish councillor agreed that it was at the heart of Christianity and 
should not be forgotten.  She noted that she felt it was the same pulpit in use at 
St.Botolph’s today,that was used by John Cotton when preaching at that time.  
Referencing the events scheduled in Fishtoft itself, she confirmed that the Church was 
very much a part of the festivities. 
 
Another parish councillor referenced the Illuminate event and asked why Fishtoft Village 
School had not been invited to take part in the parade.  The officer said he would look 
into it for future events. 
 
 
In conclusion the Chairman agreed the overall positive comments from members at the 
level of activity for the event. She especially noted, that the implementation of the bouys 
and the Statement Art would be permanent and lead to further benefitting of the town’s 
all year round visitor offer.  She praised the work of the officers and asked that further 
update reporting be provided ahead of the events starting.   
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
5 March 2019 
 

 
 
 
123   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Committee were advised that the work programme was tabled to reassure members that 
suggested items for scrutiny from the current Council’s term in office, had been taken 
forward to the forthcoming new municipal year 2019 / 2020.   A further report in respect 
of the 20/20 Pilgrims would be added to the programme for the new municipal year. 
 
On closing the meeting the Chairman thanked everybody for their time and effort over 
the last four years in what had been a very busy scrutiny period.  The committee had 
carried out significant task and finish reviews, one of which in respect of the markets, 
had resulted in local schools being heavily involved. They had carried out their own 
surveys and then attended an invitation to the Guildhall where they were officially 
charged to report back to the committee.  They did so, to a full committee meeting 
where they presented extremely good reports.   The committee had also been consulted 
on the possible new waste facility and had been praised at the level of the consultation 
response provided.   It had furthermore received a wide range of reports across the 
years, scrutinising a large number of services and provided significant recommendations 
through to Cabinet 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.30 pm 
 

Page 6



 

 

 

REPORT TO: ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 18 JUNE 2019 

SUBJECT: WORK PROGRAMME 2019 / 2020 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: N/A 

REPORT AUTHOR: Report to be tabled by the Chairman. 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 
 

REPORT: 
 

This report is tabled at our first meeting of this committee to enable all members to 
familiarise themselves with the remit and ways of working of this committee. 
 

It further allows the committee the time to consider it’s workload for the current year 
and also moving forward, throughout its four year term of office.  It ensures that a 
robust schedule of reporting is pre planned where possible. 
 

The report includes the following appendices to assist the committee in recognising 
its’ role and obligations in scrutinising both internal and external services and areas: 
 

1. The Terms of Reference of this Committee which identifies the Corporate 
Priorities to which this committee is aligned along with the Protocol for 
Scrutiny and Policy Development.  Members should also recognise that the 
committee has the right to scrutinise external services. 
 

2. The various options of Scrutiny available to the committee to allow members to 
decide how they take forward any items for consideration. 
 

3. The work programme which is a working document and will be updated for 
each meeting. It contains two items ‘rolled over’ from the previous committee, 
both of which require consideration in respect of whether or not they are to be 
actioned, and if they are, then via what strand of scrutiny.  
 

4. The ¼ performance monitoring figures which are relevant to this committee, 
are provided.  This reporting is produced in full format direct to all members 
each quarter, however it is recognised that this shortened version allows direct 
reference and the reporting officer will be in attendance on this occasion to 
assist committee in its consideration.  
 

5. Finally the previous years’ annual scrutiny report is also attached.  This will 
provide members with an insight into the activities of this committee, noting the 
subject matters recently considered.  This report provides an annual account 
of committee’s activity and is taken through to Full Council for publication. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. That members consider the reporting enclosed to familiarise themselves with 
the remit of their committee to allow them to undertake their role.  
 

2. That the committee members having received the supporting ¼ performance 
reporting, agree its benefit to them and identify any potential scrutiny. 

 

3. That the committee note the two outstanding items ‘rolled over’ from the last 
meeting of the committee and agree or not, whether to take the items forward 
and how to do so. 
 

4. That the Committee considers the Annual Scrutiny Report and recommends it 
to Full Council for publication.  
 

 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

N/A 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

Appendix 1 Terms of Reference 

Appendix 2 Ways of Working – Scrutiny Options 

Appendix 3 Work Programme 

Appendix 4 Quarter 4 Performance Monitoring – Briefing note 

Appendix 5 Forward Plan 

Appendix 6 Annual Scrutiny Report 

 

 

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS. 

1. To strengthen to knowledge of the new Scrutiny Committee 

2. To allow a rolling work programme to be developed by members. 

3. To determine the two outstanding suggestions for scrutiny on the work programme 
from the previous year.  

4. To publish the annual report providing public access to the workings of the 
committee.  

 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
 
1. To carry out overview and scrutiny functions on behalf of the Council. 

 
2. To appoint as required such Task and Finish Groups as it considers appropriate to assist 

with fulfilling those overview and scrutiny functions. 

 
3. To prepare, adjust and update from time to time the annual overview and scrutiny work 

programme within its area of responsibility and to report details as appropriate to the 
Council. 

 
4. To put in place a system to ensure that all overview and scrutiny work is carried out 

efficiently including referrals from Overview and Scrutiny Panels to the Cabinet, either by 
way of report or for reconsideration. 

 
5. To review service plans and policy implementation and raise policy issues with the Cabinet 

and/or Council, whichever is appropriate. 

 
6. To carry out performance management responsibilities for every service including receiving 

information on the outcome of service delivery plans. 

 
7. To make recommendations to either the Cabinet and/or Council regarding the development 

of future policies and strategies. 

 
8. To scrutinise decisions taken by the Cabinet, but not yet implemented, which fall within the 

remit of the committee, by means of the Call In procedure. 

 
9. To report and recommend to Council or the Cabinet, on the discharge of functions or 

matters that affect the Council’s area or its residents.  

 
10. In association with the Cabinet, and subject to any timescales, to respond to Government or 

external consultations concerning issues within the remit of the Committee. 

 
11. To consider matters raised under Councillor Call for Action procedures (CCfA) in terms of a 

local government matter (as contained in S119 of the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007 and S21A of the Local Government Act 2000). 

 
12. To consider matters raised under Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) in terms of local crime 

and disorder issues (as contained in S19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006) which will be 
considered by the Environment and Performance Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 9



 
 
 
 

REMITS OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Environment and Performance Committee 
 
 

 

Corporate Priority 1 – Prosperity 

We need a strong economy which is growing which will generate more and better job 

opportunities and will attract people and businesses to the area.  

 
 

Our key aims: 
 
 Promote and support inward investment into the borough 

 Support business development and growth for new and existing businesses 

 Infrastructure development  

 Support housing growth 

 Develop our tourism, heritage and cultural opportunities  

 

 

To deliver this priority we will: 
 

Provide support to businesses  

 Support business growth and work with funding organisations to facilitate this 

 Have the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan adopted during 2017 to ensure we have a 

five-year housing land supply, allocate land for industry and pave the way for ongoing 

development of a distributor road for Boston 

 Continue to operate flexible planning policies to support development in the town centre 

and the wider borough 

 Work in partnership with Lincolnshire County Council, Environment Agency, Internal 

Drainage Boards  and others to seek to develop our considerable waterways 

opportunities and in particular delivery of the Boston Barrier 

 Support delivery of more homes  

 Work in partnership to develop Boston as a tourist destination 

 Work in partnership to secure funding to preserve and develop our rich heritage  

 

 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Priority 3 –  Place 

Boston is a very safe place to live and this is reflected in our low crime rates and our open, 

rural environment and historic market town which offers a quality way of life for residents.   

 

 

Our key aims: 
 
 Maintain community safety 

 Cleanliness 

 Further improve recycling rates 

 

 

 

To deliver this priority we will 
 
 Continue to tackle anti-social behaviour 

 Promote greater opportunities for recycling and composting and reducing the amount 

of residual waste  

 Ensure our streets and public open spaces are clean and well maintained 

 Provide CCTV services to increase confidence in safety 

 Work with our partners to improve the perception of community safety 

 Use our powers effectively to improve the wellbeing of our residents 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 
 

PROTOCOL FOR SCRUTINY AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

Members of the Environment and Performance Committee will: 
 
1. Act independently 
2. Take the lead 
3. Work in a constructive atmosphere 
4. Act courteously towards all those involved in the Overview and Scrutiny process 
5. Operate in an open and transparent way 
6. Try to reach a consensus whenever possible 
7. Receive impartial and independent officer advice 
8. Regularly review processes 
9. Plan a programme of work and participate in task and finish groups 
10. Prepare for meetings and focus on delivering clearly defined and measurable outcomes. 
11. Manage time effectively 
 
 
 

1. Independence 
 

Committee Members will not be subject to ‘whipping’ arrangements by party groups. They 
will maintain an apolitical stance for the purposes of Overview and Scrutiny. 

 
2. Member leadership 
 

Members of the Committees will take the lead in selecting topics for Scrutiny, in forming 
task and finish groups, in reporting their findings back to the respective Committee or 
Cabinet and in questioning witnesses. Where appropriate, the Committees may request 
the Chairman (or another non-executive Member representative) to present their views or 
recommendations to Cabinet. 
 
The Committees will expect Members of Cabinet, rather than officers, to take the main 
responsibility for answering their questions at ‘call-in’ meetings and where poor 
performance and key corporate policy issues are being discussed.  

 
The roles of non-executive Members and Cabinet Members should not, however, become 
‘blurred’ and there should be no expectation that Cabinet Members would attend every 
Committee meeting as a matter of course. 
 

3. Working in a constructive atmosphere 
 

Meetings of the Committees will be constructive, not judgmental, hostile or negative, 
accepting that effective Overview and Scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and 
constructive enquiry and proposals or suggestions.  People giving evidence or information 
at a Committee meeting should not feel under attack. 
 

4. Respect and trust 
 

Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust and courtesy will be 
shown to all those taking part. 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
5. Openness and transparency 
 

The business of the Committees will be open and transparent, except where there are 
sound reasons for protecting confidentiality (in which case these will be recorded).  In 
particular, the minutes of meetings will explain the debate so that those who were not 
present could understand it.   

 
6. Consensus 
 

Members of the Committees will work together and, while recognising political allegiances, 
will attempt to achieve consensus and agreed recommendations in order to feedback clear 
views and recommendations to Cabinet or Council. 
 

7. Impartial and independent officer advice 
 

Officers who advise and support the Committees will give impartial and independent 
advice, recognising the importance of Overview and Scrutiny and audit in the Council’s 
arrangements for governance, as set out in its Constitution.   
 

8. Regular review and innovation 
 

There will be regular reviews of how the Overview and Scrutiny process is working, and a 
willingness to change if it is not working well. This may involve the use of independent 
facilitators and/or checklists. 
 

As part of the review process there will be an annual report to Full Council on the work of 
the Committees setting out their achievements, any areas of concern and/or proposals for 
amended working methods.  
 
Different approaches, formats and venues will be piloted, with a particular emphasis being 
placed on involving witnesses and engaging with the public. Ideas for change or evolution 
may come from Members and Officers, training, visits to other authorities or sharing of best 
practice through the Centre for Public Scrutiny, EL-GEM Scrutiny Network and others.  
 

9. Programming, planning and liaison 
 

The Committees will agree the topics to be included in a realistic, do-able work programme 
for the year, the extent of the investigation to be undertaken in relation to internal 
capacity/resources, and the witnesses to be invited to give evidence.  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will focus on those things where they can “add 
value”, rather than ‘skate over’ a large number of topics. The Council’s four-month Forward 
Plan will be used selectively to update the work programmes. 
 
In developing work programmes the Committees will have regard to the views of the 
public. The local press and media may be used to identify public concerns and potential 
Scrutiny topics. New legislation, or broader issues affecting key stakeholders or services in 
the Borough, County or Region, may also form the basis of topics for Scrutiny. 

Page 13



 
 
 

Work programmes, while important, are indicative and it is recognised that there may be 
occasions when adjustments have to be made to take account of more important or urgent 
items that come forward during the year. 
 
Where a majority group (or coalition) controls the Council, the Chairmen of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees should be from an opposition group. 
 
Building a good working relationship between the Committees and the Cabinet is crucial. 
The Committee Chairmen will meet regularly with the Leader of the Council to discuss 
work programmes and other issues of mutual interest. Relationships between the Cabinet 
and Committees may also be discussed at the joint meeting of Group Leaders and 
Deputies.  
 
Where Cabinet takes a decision that is contrary to the Committees’ recommendations it will 
record sound reasons. 
 
Joint meetings of the Committees may be convened where necessary, for example when 
discussing the Budget Strategy or Local Development Framework. The joint meeting will 
be chaired by one of the Committee Chairmen. 
 
 

10. Preparation and outcomes 
 

Members will consider all agenda material published prior to the meeting in order to focus 
on achieving a definite outcome from debate in the form of: - 
 

(a) recommendations to Cabinet or Council; 
(b) the formation of a task and finish group to undertake further investigations; or 

seek a member working group, inquiry day or briefing. 
(c) actions that could be taken by officers; or 
(d) an action plan for Members, officers and/or outside agencies 
 

In order to maximise effectiveness, pre-meetings or briefings may be held to decide on the 
line of questioning to be adopted in respect of witnesses. Witnesses invited to address a 
meeting will be notified in advance of the topic headings to be covered in Members’ 
questioning.   
 
 

11. Managing Time 
 

The Committees will attempt to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time 
(normally no more than 3 hours). The order of business will be arranged as far as possible 
to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses.   
 

Page 14



WAYS OF WORKING….  SCRUTINY OPTIONS:  

 
Various options of scrutiny are available to Members to allow them flexibility on the wide range of 
subject matters within the Committee remit. 

 
1. Direct Reporting: 
    

Officers produce a report direct to the Committee. It may be a report seeking an official 
scrutiny response to a matter which is being taken through to Cabinet or Full Council for 
determination; it may be a follow-up report that Committee has requested following initial 
tabling; or it may be an annual update across a service area, which is required to be 
produced on behalf of a specific service area. 

 
 

2. Task and Finish Group Review: 
 

      Offers Members the opportunity to undertake a thorough review of a service area or facility 
allowing them to hold consultations / undertake research and information gathering and the 
group would then report back to the Parent Committee within an agreed time scale.  Such a 
group would have the services of the Committee Clerk and the respective service area 
manager to assist them in the review. 

 
 

3. Member Working Groups: 
 

This allows a small group of Members to undertake a short review into a service area or area 
of concern, within a set timescale, and usually over 3 or 4 meetings.  Such reviews are held 
only by the Members and without the support of any Officer.  The groups are free to source 
information from Officers to support their review and once concluded the group itself would 
produce its own report and present it back to the Parent Committee.  (Officer support 
available in the construction of the report if required.) 

 
  

4.   Inquiry Days: 
 

         Facilitated by Senior Officers, these days allow a very open and frank discussion in respect 
of a service area…whereby Councillors and Officers are able to discuss a situation in closed 
session without any recording / minuting of the meeting itself.   

 
 

5. Member Briefing: 
 

        Usually held in the evening with options for all-Member or all non-executive Members only 
sessions.  Such events cut across a wide range of reporting including updating / initial 
introductory reporting / changes to practices and so forth.   Often aimed at all Members they 
prove an effective way of imparting information on a single subject matter allowing immediate 
feedback and questioning by Members. 

 

 

 
It is always for the Scrutiny Committee to agree and determine what type of scrutiny it wishes to 
undertake in respect of the subject matter it wishes to scrutinise.  
 
Officers can offer advice but the Committee itself should ultimately drive and schedule its own 
workload and method of scrutiny to produce the best outcomes of scrutiny.  
 

APPENDIX 2 

Page 15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is blank  

Page 16



            Environment and Performance Committee 2019–20                    
 

THIS COMMITTEE’S REMIT IS ALIGNED TO COPORATE PRIORITIES:   CP1 PROSPERITY   and   CP3 PLACE 
 

               WORK PROGRAMME 
 

DATE REPORT REPORTING P/FOLIO CABINET 
 
 

18.06.19 
 

 Introduction to committee / Work Programme 
 Annual Scrutiny Report 
 

 

Chairman and Lead Officer 
 

  

17.07.19 
 

 

 

30.07.19 
 

CCTV annual Update 
MAYFAIR – Food Units review 
BAEF Consultation Phase 3  
 

 

Community Safety Manager 
Town Centre Services 
Manager 
Deputy Chief Executive 
 

  

11.09.19 
 

 

 

 

24.09.19 
 

BAEF – Update be representatives 
PILGRIMS 20/20  -  UPDATE 
 

 

Deputy Chief Executive 
Head of Place 

 
 

23.10.19 
 

 

 

05.11.19 
 
 

  
 

04.12.19 
 

 

 

07.01.20 
 

   
 

22.01.20 

 

 

03.03.20 
 

   
 

19.02.19 

 

 

28.04.20 
 

   
 

01.04.20 

 

2020/2021 
 

 

 

2021/2022 
 

 

 

2022/2023 
 

 

Appendix 3 

P
age 17



 
 
 

The is a working document and subject to ongoing change.  It is a standing item at the beginning of every agenda. 
 

Options on Scrutiny Working:  
 

Direct Reporting.   Task and Finish Group Review.    Member Working Group.      Inquiry Day.      Member Briefing. 
 

As at time of issuing of this agenda none of the above options are actioned. 
 
 

Items carried over from the previous year 2018 / 19: 
 

The following items were tabled by the 2018/2019 committee and due to the depth of potential scrutiny involved in each, it was agreed to defer 
them for the new committee 2019/2020.    
 

The first meeting of this committee will consider the items and agree or not if they wish to proceed. 
 
 

1. Environmental Building and Construction: 
 

Purpose:   
To understand how effective the Council is in driving and promoting development which is both environmentally friendly and sustainable for both 
domestic and commercial buildings.   
To see how effective national policy is and the legislative framework at supporting the Council.   
Does the Council drive innovation within the construction sector?    
To seek initially what measures are in place to monitor local and national construction companies – how does Boston benchmark with others.   
What power does to the Council have to require and hold developers to account to be as ecologically friendly as possible?   
How active are the regular developers within the borough in providing sustainable development? 
Does Boston’s planning committee require sight at committee of any applicants’ intent to produce as ecologically friendly dwellings as possible? 
  

The level of scrutiny involved in this item would lead itself to a Task and Finish Group Review due to the amount of information gathering 
required both in-house and externally.   

 

 
2. Environmental Procurement: 
 

Purpose:   
To understand how effective the Council is with environmentally friendly and sustainable purchasing and procurement arrangements and to see 
how effective the Council is at supporting local business in helping to reduce its carbon footprint. 
 

The level of scrutiny involved in this item could lead itself to a short term member working group working directly in-house with the respective 
officers and then reporting back to committee.  Alternatively it members may wish an Inquiry Day.  

P
age 18



 

 

Performance Q4 2018/19 – Environment & Performance Committee 
summary 
 
Performance measures: directly within the Council’s control; used to monitor how our 
services are performing against set targets 
 
Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

CP1: performance measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

% of major planning applications determined within 
13 weeks 

L EP 73% 75%  83% 75%  

% minor planning applications decided within 8 
weeks 

L EP 71% 65%  71% 65%  

% of all other applications determined within 8 
weeks 

L EP 82% 80%  77% 80%  

Number of businesses visited to support business 
growth 

L EP 54 New 56 50  

Number of events attended to promote the Borough L EP 5 New 4 4  

 

Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

CP3: performance 
measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Household waste reused, 
recycled, composted 

E EP 41.52% 44.09%  41.07% 41.52%  

Residual household 
waste per household 

E EP 540kg 525kg  553kg 540kg  

Comment: This reflects the regional and national trend and is being addressed by the Lincolnshire 
Waste Partnership (LWP) who are developing the Waste Strategy for Lincolnshire. 

% of fly tip reports 
responded to within 2 
working days 

E EP 84.77% New 72% 85%  

Comment:  12% increase in the number of fly tips reported in Q4 compared to Q3. 10.66% of fly 
tips were collected on the same day that they were reported in Q4 (compared to 20.63% in Q3) 

Car parking income 
against monthly profile* 

TC EP £828,905 £900,000  £867,417 £860,000  

Car Parking permit 
income vs budget 

TC EP £80,711 £69,220  £100,482 £87,350  

                                                
*
 This includes income from tickets purchased via the MiPermit app 

Appendix 4 

Page 19



 

 

CP3: performance 
measures 

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

2017/18 
– full year 

2018/19 
– full year 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

A
c

tu
a

l 

T
a
rg

e
t 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

Market Income TC EP £167,035 £180,000  £144,450 £180,000  

Comment: A review of the Market will be completed within the new financial year. 

 
Performance key 
: Performance better than target; : Performance on target; : Performance worse than target 
 

Portfolio key 
E: Environmental Services; F: Finance; H: Housing and Communities; L: Leader; R: Regulatory; 
TA: Tourism, Arts, Culture & Heritage; TC: Town Centre 
 

Scrutiny key 
CC: Corporate and Community Committee; EP: Environment and Performance Committee 

 
Trend measures: provide context and not directly within the Council’s control; used to 
inform decision making and policy. 
 

Corporate Priority 1: Prosperity 
 

 
 
 

 -  

 5.000  

 10.000  

 15.000  

 20.000  

 25.000  

 30.000  

17/18-
Q1 

17/18-
Q2 

17/18-
Q3 

17/18-
Q4 

18/19-
Q1 

18/19-
Q2 

18/19-
Q3 

18/19-
Q4 

Gross (£m) 24.567  24.129  24.322  24.261  25.532  25.363  25.450  25.402  

Net (£m) 20.068  19.427  19.872  19.730  20.637  20.308  20.316  20.244  

Collectable business rates 

Page 20



 

 

 

 
 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Major 86% 100% 63% 56% 64% 79% 84% 83% 

Target 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 75% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Major planning applications determined on time 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Minor 76% 85% 71% 54% 45% 67% 68% 71% 

Target 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 65% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Minor planning applications determined on time 

Page 21



 

 

 
 
The Government tracks planning performance over a cumulative 2-year period. Boston’s 
performance is currently at 79% for majors (against a minimum standard of 60%) and 76% for 
minors and others (against a minimum standard of 70%). 

 
 

 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Other 97% 93% 84% 60% 62% 76% 78% 77% 

Target 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 80% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Other planning applications determined on time 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

180 

17/18:Q1 17/18:Q2 17/18:Q3 17/18:Q4 18/19:Q1 18/19:Q2 18/19:Q3 18/19:Q4 

Number 147 152 171 160 145 175 142 116 

Number of registered planning applications 

Page 22



 

 

Corporate Priority 3: Place 
 

 
 
We finished third in the league overall in terms of 12 month average contamination rate at 31% 
when compared to all districts. Only ELDC (30%) and NKDC (30%) have achieved a better annual 
average for 18/19. All other districts finished at 32%. 
 

25% for March was our best performance all year and the lowest of all districts in March. In fact 
lower than 25% has only been achieved by two councils (ELDC and NKDC) once this year. 
 
Commercial waste: 
 

Trend measures 2018/19 

% growth in income in commercial waste service compared to year end 2017/18 +20% 

Number of commercial waste customers compared to 2017/18 baseline +18% 
 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

Apr 
18 

May 
18 

Jun 
18 

Jul 18 Aug 
18 

Sep 
18 

Oct 
18 

Nov 
18 

Dec 
18 

Jan 19 Feb 
19 

Mar 
19 

BBC 31% 33% 33% 30% 29% 31% 33% 36% 36% 28% 29% 25% 

Lincs average 31% 31% 32% 30% 27% 30% 34% 34% 34% 30% 30% 30% 

Contamination in Domestic Recycling 

Page 23



 

 

 
 

 
 

Breakdown of ‘other household’ items: 

 Furniture: 38 

 Mattresses: 37 

 Wood: 10 

 Textiles: 5 

 Toys: 4 

 Garden items: 0 
 

This does not correspond exactly to the number of ‘other household’ items overall because there 
may be multiple types of items in one ‘other household’ incident. 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

15/16: Q4 16/17: Q4 17/18: Q4 18/19: Q4 

Number 186 341 290 401 

Number of fly tip incidents in Q4 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

Fly tip incidents by type 

17/18-Q4 18/19-Q4 

Page 24



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

Single Item Car Boot Small Van Transit 
Van 

Tipper Significant 

2017/18_Q4 20 28 77 100 24 3 

2018/19_Q4 81 130 121 26 9 1 

Fly tip incidents by volume 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

FPNs 243 188 152 248 105 198 119 174 

Fixed Penalty Notices issued 

Page 25



 

 

 
 
Lower quarter 4 visitor numbers is consistent with historic user trend during this period 
 

 
 
  

0 

1000 

2000 

3000 

4000 

5000 

6000 

Q1 17/18 Q2 17/18 Q3 17/18 Q4 17/18 Q1 18/19 Q2 18/19 Q3 18/19 Q4 18/19 

Count 4881 5152 4563 3274 4766 4407 4864 3002 

Guildhall Door Count 

£0.00  

£20,000.00  

£40,000.00  

£60,000.00  

£80,000.00  

£100,000.00  

£120,000.00  

£140,000.00  

£160,000.00  

£180,000.00  

A
rt

ill
er

y 
R

o
w

 

B
ar

ga
te

 G
re

en
 

B
o

to
lp

h
 S

tr
ee

t 

B
u

o
y 

Ya
rd

 

C
at

tl
e 

M
ar

ke
t 

C
u

st
o

m
 H

o
u

se
 Q

u
ay

 

D
o

u
gh

ty
 Q

u
ay

 

G
eo

rg
e 

St
re

et
 

M
ar

ke
t 

P
la

ce
 

M
au

d
 S

tr
ee

t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 B
u

ild
in

gs
 

P
u

m
p

 S
q

u
ar

e 
 

So
u

th
 S

q
u

ar
e

 

Sp
ay

n
e 

R
o

ad
  

St
an

ila
n

d
 

St
at

io
n

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

St
 G

eo
rg

e'
s 

R
o

ad
 

Tu
n

n
ar

d
 S

tr
ee

t 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
P

la
ce

 

W
es

t 
En

d
  

W
id

e 
B

ar
ga

te
  

Income by car park 

17/18 18/19 

Page 26



 

 

Car Park  2017/18 2018/19 Difference 

Artillery Row £12,090.05 £11,387.82 -£702.23 

Bargate Green £103,959.15 £106,638.09 £2,678.94 

Botolph Street £15,751.56 £15,054.80 -£696.76 

Buoy Yard £6,419.46 £8,091.93 £1,672.47 

Cattle Market £164,750.05 £174,610.66 £9,860.61 

Custom House Quay £57,414.33 £53,012.35 -£4,401.98 

Doughty Quay £28,102.26 £28,980.73 £878.47 

George Street £3,877.75 £4,647.50 £769.75 

Market Place £77,229.52 £77,409.40 £179.88 

Maud Street £23,564.66 £22,451.25 -£1,113.41 

Municipal Buildings £1,750.95 £2,118.32 £367.37 

Pump Square  £32,806.20 £46,407.25 £13,601.05 

South Square £11,489.40 £18,295.37 £6,805.97 

Spayne Road  £9,505.07 £9,214.93 -£290.14 

Staniland £46,945.42 £33,921.12 -£13,024.30 

Station Approach £16,104.84 £12,083.58 -£4,021.26 

St George's Road £77,298.47 £96,301.76 £19,003.29 

Tunnard Street £29,609.72 £38,155.17 £8,545.45 

Victoria Place £10,796.08 £11,674.12 £878.04 

West End  £78,900.79 £72,784.92 -£6,115.87 

Wide Bargate  £20,539.15 £24,176.05 £3,636.90 

Total  £828,904.88 £867,417.12 £38,512.24 

 

 
 

0 

500 

1000 

1500 

2000 

2500 

17/18: 
Q1 

17/18: 
Q2 

17/18: 
Q3 

17/18: 
Q4 

18/19: 
Q1 

18/19: 
Q2 

18/19: 
Q3 

18/19: 
Q4 

Average footfall 1925 2008 2121 1680 1968 1930 1957 1754 

Average pedestrian footfall 

Page 27



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

0 

100 

200 

300 

400 

500 

600 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Q4 543 435 566 303 346 260 

Number of CCTV directed/assisted arrests 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Q4 233 247 320 199 229 208 

Number of CCTV evidential packages 

Page 28



 

 

 
 

Trend measures 
2017/18 2018/19 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Number of Stage 1 Antisocial Behaviour (ASB) letters 14 11 21 26 19 15 22 25 

Number of Stage 2 Antisocial Behaviour (ASB) letters 7 7 5 7 3 6 1 6 

Number of Acceptable Behaviour Agreements (ABAs) 1 5 6 0 1 0 0 0 

Number of injunctions 0 1 1 1 3 0 0 0 

Number of Community Protection Notice Warnings 
issued 

0 0 0 0 0 5 1 2 

Number of Community Protection Notices (CPN) relating 
to the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 

1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1000 

1200 

1400 

1600 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Q4 1109 1400 1483 896 985 628 

Number of CCTV incidents recorded 

Page 29



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is blank 

Page 30



 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 

1 JUNE to 30 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

During the period 1 June to 30 September 2019 Boston Borough Council intends to take ‘Key Decisions’ on the issues 

set out in the following pages.  Key decisions relate to those decisions which are likely to: 
 

 Result in the authority incurring expenditure which is, or involves the making of savings which are significant 
having regard to the authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

 Be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards of 
the Borough. 

 
The Forward Plan is an outline of the proposed decisions and it will be updated on a monthly basis.  Those items 
identified for decision more than one month in advance will be carried over to the following months plan.  Each new plan 
supersedes the previous plan. 
 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which decisions will be discussed and the 
papers listed on the Plan can be viewed free of charge at the Customer Services Desk, Municipal Building, West Street, 
Boston, or on the Council’s website, www.boston.gov.uk 
 

If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the ‘key decisions’ outlined in the Plan, please submit them 
in writing to the contact officer identified against each key decision in the Plan, at least 2 working days before the date of 
the meeting at which the decision is to be taken. 
 
 

Appendix 5 

P
age 31

http://www.boston.gov.uk/


 

Boston Borough council Forward Plan 
1 June to 30 September 2019 

 

Subject Decision 
Maker 

Date 
Decision 
to be 
taken 

Comments to: 

 Name 

 Telephone 

 E-mail 
 

Documents submitted to 
decision maker and where 
they are available from 

Portfolio 
Holder(s) 

Is decision to 
be taken in 
private 
meeting 
(exempt 
information)? 

Recommendation 
from the Boston 
Town Area 
Committee (BTAC) 
to use £40,000 
funding allocated to 
support open space 
improvements 
 

Cabinet 
 

5 Jun 
2019 
 

Phil Perry, Head of Place and 
Space Tel: 01205 314296 
phil.perry@boston.gov.uk 

Excerpt from minutes of BTAC 
will be available five clear days 
before the meeting from 
Democratic Services and on 
the website 
www.boston.gov.uk 
 

Councillor 
Chelcei 
Sharman 

No 

Quarter 4 Report - 
Performance, 
Finance and Risk 
 

Cabinet 
 

5 Jun 
2019 
 

Paul Julian, Chief Finance 
Officer and S151 Officer Tel: 
01205 314487 
paul.julian@boston.gov.uk, 
Suzanne Rolfe, 
Transformation & Governance 
Manager Tel: 01205 314265 
suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk 

Report to Cabinet.  Public 
report will be available five 
clear days before the meeting 
from Democratic Services and 
on the website 
www.boston.gov.uk 
 

Cllr 
Spencer, 
Finance 

No 

P
age 32



 
Boston Borough council Forward Plan 

1 June to 30 September 2019 
 

Subject Decision 
Maker 

Date 
Decision 
to be 
taken 

Comments to: 

 Name 

 Telephone 

 E-mail 
 

Documents submitted to 
decision maker and where 
they are available from 

Portfolio 
Holder(s) 

Is decision to 
be taken in 
private 
meeting 
(exempt 
information)? 

Business Rates Pilot 
Funds  
 
(A notice has been 
published to give 5 
working days’ notice 
of this decision) 
 

Cabinet 
 

5 Jun 
2019 
 

Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief 
Executive (Monitoring Officer) 
Tel: 01205 314292 
michelle.sacks@boston.gov.uk 

Report to Cabinet.  Public 
report will be available five 
clear days before the meeting 
from Democratic Services and 
on the website 
www.boston.gov.uk 
 

Cllr 
Cooper, 
Leader 

No 

Quarter 1 Report - 
Performance, Risk 
And Finance 
 

Cabinet 
 

11 Sep 
2019 
 

Paul Julian, Chief Finance 
Officer and S151 Officer Tel: 
01205 314487 
paul.julian@boston.gov.uk, 
Suzanne Rolfe, 
Transformation & Governance 
Manager Tel: 01205 314265 
suzanne.rolfe@boston.gov.uk 
 

Report to Cabinet.  Public 
report will be available five 
clear days before the meeting 
from Democratic Services and 
on the website 
www.boston.gov.uk 
 

Cllr 
Spencer, 
Finance 

No 

P
age 33



 
Boston Borough council Forward Plan 

1 June to 30 September 2019 
 

Subject Decision 
Maker 

Date 
Decision 
to be 
taken 

Comments to: 

 Name 

 Telephone 

 E-mail 
 

Documents submitted to 
decision maker and where 
they are available from 

Portfolio 
Holder(s) 

Is decision to 
be taken in 
private 
meeting 
(exempt 
information)? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      

P
age 34



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

ANNUAL SCRUTINY 

REPORT 2018/19  

Appendix 6 

Page 35



 

 
 

 

Contents 

  
1. What is Overview and Scrutiny and how does it work? 

 
2. How does Overview & Scrutiny work in Boston? 

 
3. Who is involved in Scrutiny?   

 
4. A word from the Monitoring Officer  
 
5. Review of the Year 
 
6. Task and Finish Groups 
 
7. Looking to the Year Ahead 
 
8. How YOU, the public, can get involved and have your say     
 
  

Page 36



 

 
 

1.  What is Overview & Scrutiny? 
 
Boston Borough Councillors has 30 Councillors, all of whom share a commitment to 
improve the lives and wellbeing of the people of the Borough.   
  
Seven Councillors currently serve on the Council’s Cabinet and are known as 
Portfolio Holders.  Cabinet has delegated authority to make decisions in accordance 
with the Council’s Constitution.  The remaining non-executive Councillors have the 
opportunity to consider issues in relation to the Council’s services or wider matters 
affecting the community as a whole through the overview and scrutiny function.   
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees have no executive powers; they make 
recommendations to the Cabinet or full Council if they wish action to be taken, which 
may or may not be agreed.  However, the function enables non-executive Members 
to undertake an investigatory process to review, support and improve services whilst 
holding the Cabinet and the Council’s senior officers to account.   
  
Whilst scrutiny arrangements are established to provide an independent process for 
reviewing Council decisions and policies, the intention is not for scrutiny to be a 
confrontational or divisive process, but to complement and add value to the work of 
the Cabinet. 
 

2.  How does Overview & Scrutiny work in Boston? 
 
The Council’s two Overview and Scrutiny Committees are each made up of 11 non-
executive Councillors who consider services provided by the Council and, in some 
cases, services provided by partner organisations and other external bodies.  These 
committees consider new policies that are being developed, look at existing policies 
to see how well they are working and examine performance information to check that 
standards are being met.  The committees manage and are responsible for their own 
workloads – full details are given in section 5. 
  
An effective overview and scrutiny function should provide the relevant committees 
with the ability to look at all aspects of service areas in order that service provision 
can be comprehensively investigated or scrutinised.  The remits of the two 
committees were aligned with Cabinet portfolios two years previously, which allows 
each committee to undertake policy review, policy development, performance 
management and scrutiny reviews of areas within their remit.   
  
Overview and Scrutiny Committees are able to establish time-limited task and finish 
group reviews that focus on a particular issue and consider it in greater detail than is 
possible at committee meetings.  These reviews will include a mixture of interviews 
with relevant officers, research of best practice, meetings with service users and 
community groups and consultation with wider parts of the community.    
 
The committees also consider Cabinet decisions that are ‘called in’ for scrutiny by 
four non-Executive Members and ‘Councillor Calls for Action’ from Members. 
 
  

Page 37



 

 
 

A Councillor Call for Action is a mechanism any Member of the Council can use to 
refer to the appropriate overview and scrutiny committee any ‘local government 
matter’, i.e. one relating to the functions of the authority which affect the Member’s 
area or any individual who lives or works in that area, provided it is not an excluded 
matter and all other possibilities to resolve the issue have been exhausted.   
 
NB: All-Member Briefings are scheduled to take place regularly throughout the year 
for officers and guest speakers to impart information to Members on topical matters 
of interest.  These briefings are informal and give Members the opportunity to ask 
any questions they may have and can initiate ideas for matters to be scrutinised.   
 
Full details of Boston’s overview and scrutiny function are set out in the Overview 
and Scrutiny Procedure Rules at Part 4(E) of the Council’s Constitution, which is 
available on the Council’s website.   
 

3.  Who is involved in Scrutiny?   
 
Every year, at the Council’s AGM in May, 11 non-executive Councillors are 
appointed to each of the two Scrutiny Committees, though membership does change 
from time to time.   
 
Membership during 2018/19 was as follows: 
 
Corporate & Community Committee  
 
Chairman: Councillor Paul Gleeson – Skirbeck Ward 
 

 
 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Colin Brotherton – Kirton & Frampton Ward 
 
Councillor Richard Austin – Wyberton Ward 
Councillor David Brown – Wyberton Ward 
Councillor Anton Dani – Fenside Ward (until December 2018) 
Councillor Maureen Dennis – Old Leake and Wrangle Ward 
Councillor James Edwards – Kirton & Frampton Ward 
Councillor Jonathan Noble – Fishtoft Ward 
Councillor Elizabeth Ransome – Swineshead & Holland Fen 
Councillor Sue Ransome – Station Ward 
Councillor Brian Rush – Staniland Ward (from December 2018) 
Councillor Judith Skinner – Fishtoft Ward 
Councillor Stephen Woodliffe – West Ward  

Page 38



 

 
 

Environment and Performance Committee  
 
Chairman: Councillor Judith Skinner – Fishtoft Ward 
 
“I am delighted that the committee has embraced the new 

ways of working. The Inquiry sessions have been 

particularly productive producing some very good debate 

and sound recommendations. This has been well received 

especially in the case of the Boston Alternative Energy 

Facility. 

Engaging with our local schools for our Markets Review has produced some 

valuable feedback to the committee and in return the schools have had an insight 

into how the council makes its decisions. This has also resulted in increased 

participation in our Local Democracy Week. The committee has also forged valuable 

links for any further consultations it take on in the future. 

My thanks must go to the officers for all their hard work in arranging the 

consultations and collating the information received from them”. 

 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Yvonne Stevens – Trinity Ward 
Councillor Tom Ashton – Old Leake & Wrangle 
Councillor Colin Brotherton – Kirton & Frampton Ward 
Councillor Peter Bedford – Coastal Ward 
Councillor Anton Dani – Fenside Ward (until December 2018) 
Councillor Jonathan Noble – Fishtoft Ward 
Councillor Barrie Pierpoint – Old Leake & Wrangle 
Councillor Sue Ransome – Station Ward 
Councillor Stephen Raven – Witham Ward 
Councillor Brian Rush – Staniland Ward (from December 2018) 
Councillor Stephen Woodliffe – West Ward 
 

4.  A word from the Monitoring Officer  

“Effective scrutiny is essential for good governance and strengthens the robustness 

of the decision making process. When the Scrutiny Committees examine the 

Cabinet’s proposals, objectives and draft programmes in order to inform their 

development before they are formally resolved, the Scrutiny function informs the 

decision making process by questioning, examining and constructively challenging 

thoughts, ideas and evidence. This allows the Cabinet and officers to identify areas 

of improvement prior to the decision being implemented and to have properly 

considered any impact of those decisions to be taken. Not only does this 

demonstrate openness and transparency in decision making, but it adds to the wider 

benefit for the Community and ensures the decisions taken are robust and 

reasonable.” 

 

Page 39



 

 
 

5.  Review of the year 2018/19 

Both committees worked effectively during 2018/19, with the Chairmen continuing to 
work together with officers to ensure that the issues considered were topical and 
worthwhile. 
 
The committees each met for 6 scheduled meetings during the year.  The 
committees reviewed their work programmes regularly throughout the year and 
scrutinised additional subjects, referring topics to each other in accordance with the 
committees’ remits.   
 
Following Scrutiny Training undertaken by Members in 2017, the two Committees 
agreed to align their remits with the Council’s four Corporate Priorities with the 
Corporate and Community Committee remit covering Priorities 2 & 4 - People and 
Public Service - and the Environment and Performance Committee covering 
Priorities 1 & 3 - Prosperity and Place.   
 
During the Scrutiny Training, Members also identified ways in which the committees 
could add value to their work, by examining issues through Inquiry Days and 
additional Task and Finish Group Reviews, rather than simply on a Committee 
agenda.  Inquiry Days are a new way of working for the Council and involve 
Members and officers getting together informally in order for Members to receive full 
information and options on an issue and for officers to gauge Members’ opinions, 
before drafting a focussed report for consideration at the committee meeting.   
 
Here is a summary of the work of the committees during the year.   
 

Corporate & Community Committee 
 
On 1st August 2018, the Committee considered an UPDATE ON TASK AND FINISH 

GROUP ACTIVITY on the LINCOLNSHIRE SUSTAINABILITY AND 

TRANSFORMATION PLAN (STP).  Please see Section 7 for further information on 

the work of this Task and Finish Group. 

On 30th August 2018, the Committee received a detailed presentation from the 

Partnership Manger for the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) on the roll out 

of UNIVERSAL CREDIT (UC), which was due to go live on 12th September 2018 in 

Boston. 

After the presentation, Members asked a range of questions to alleviate their 

concerns about the rollout and the impact of UC.  As a result of questioning, 

Members learnt that a significant amount of work had been undertaken in 

preparation for going live and intense training had taken place over a number of 

weeks.  A high number of claimants would be in employment and would not need to 

come into the offices and many would only need to come when there was a change 

in their circumstances.  There were several ways to apply for direct payment of rent 

and the housing element of a claim would be treated exactly the same as for housing 

benefit.   

Page 40



 

 
 

Also, a significant amount of preparatory work had been undertaken to help people 

currently claiming to improve their IT skills and to provide support for others with the 

telephony system was available for those who could not access IT at all.  Every effort 

would be made to ensure UC payments were accurate and timely, with priority given 

to families with children though the onus was on people claiming to provide the 

necessary information to enable full payments to be made.  Workforce planning took 

place constantly at high level and additional staff could be allocated to provide 

support if necessary.  UC was tailored to every person’s situation, including those of 

no fixed abode and those who were unable to budget and in debt and a significant 

amount of work had been undertaken in the last two years with charities and 

organisations that supported people with chaotic lives.   

The Chairman suggested that Members needed protocols regarding how to deal with 

data and forms that people could sign to authorise Members to speak on their behalf.  

The Partnership Manager stressed the aim was to work together with organisations 

to support people and urged Members to get in touch if they had any further queries. 

Members felt the presentation and answers had been interesting, informative and 

well explained. 

 
Also on 30th August, the Head of Place and Space presented a report regarding the 

FUTURE OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE RUNNING OF ITS 

LEISURE, GUILDHALL AND SPORT SERVICES following a tender exercise 

seeking Expressions of Interest. 

The committee decided to recommend that Cabinet fully explore and progress the 

Expressions of Interest and report back on the outcome and details and that officers 

continue to explore improvements, efficiencies and savings to the current services.   

On 1st November 2018, the committee received a further update on the matter.  At 

both meetings, the reports were considered in private session, whereby members of 

the public were excluded from the meeting on the grounds that it involved the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Section 100(A)(iv) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 

Information)(Variation) Order 2006; in this case it related to the financial or business 

affairs of any particular person. 

 
At the same meeting on 1st November, the committee received a report on the 

operation of the COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME (CTS), with an update on the 

process currently being undertaken and the options being put forward for 

consultation, prior to the formal approval of the 2019/20 scheme by Council in 

January 2019.  

 

Page 41



 

 
 

 

 

Members asked various questions, as a result of which they heard that cost figures 

would not be known until the uprating figures were known in January, but that the 

cost of uprating was not normally significant.  The CTS scheme, introduced in 2013, 

was still well within budget in the current year and had never gone over budget.  

Modelling could be carried out with respect to the 75% cap, as this was part of the 

localised scheme (only pensioners were protected); however, modelling had not yet 

been considered because a fundamental review was required.  The budget surplus 

had not been used to establish assistance schemes for the public. 

The committee recommended the continuation of the current scheme to Cabinet, up-

rating the amounts used in the calculation of CTS for working age claimants in line 

with Department for Work and Pensions’ up-rating for working age social security 

benefits and non-dependant deductions.  The minutes recorded a minority view; one 

Member was against the CTS scheme in principle on the grounds that it reduced 

money going those who were the most underprivileged.  Cabinet subsequently 

agreed with the Committee on 28th November and made the same recommendation 

to Full Council, where it was approved on 21st January 2019.   

 
On 7th February 2019, the Committee received a report on the PARISH COUNCIL 

AND RURAL ISOLATION PROJECT GROUP.  The project group had been 

established as a result of recommendations from the Committee’s Rural Isolation 

Task and Finish Group, which had conducted a review in 2015/16 to help rural 

isolation by working with parish councils. The parish council project group consisted 

of a varied mix of staff from across the council who worked with parish councils to 

enhance community engagement.   

With parish council newsletters, liaison meetings and training sessions, the group 

had made good progress in building relationships and assisting parish councils and 

had delivered tangible outcomes.  By working with other agencies, the project had 

also started to develop and implement ideas to help reduce rural isolation and 

loneliness.  The group was considering an exit strategy to ensure how the 

improvements made could be sustained and continue to grow once the project 

ended in April 2019.   

The Committee recommended that Cabinet support the continuation of working 

alongside Lincolnshire County Council on the rural isolation and loneliness project 

and acknowledge the hard work and effectiveness of the group.  Members welcomed 

the continuation of many of the new links with the parish councils to have come from 

the working group and asked for an update at a future meeting.   

 

Page 42



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
At the same meeting, the Committee considered the DRAFT BUDGET SETTING 

REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019/20 - 2023/24 as part 

of the consultation process on the draft, and Member’s comments were fed back to 

Cabinet prior to the budget being approved at Full Council on 28 February 2019.   

The report outlined the 2019/2020 revenue and capital position for the General Fund 
and the proposals for the setting of discretionary fees and charges.  The Local 
Government Act 2003 required the Chief Financial Officer to report on the 
robustness of the budget. The estimates had been prepared in a prudent manner, 
although it was highlighted that there were a number of elements outside of the 
Council’s control, which would be mitigated through budget monitoring and risk 
management processes. 
 
Having taken advantage of the Government’s four-year settlement announcement, 

the final year of which was 2019/20, the Council was entering the period beyond that 

in a reasonable position taking into account the new financial regime from 2020/21 

following the upcoming Fairer Funding Review, the proposed introduction of 75% 

localisation of business rates and the revised funding formula, although the recent 

closure of one of the largest local businesses highlighted the difficulties facing the 

economy. 

Whilst the recent budget had set out the Government’s overall public sector 

spending figure for the coming years, the 2019 Spending Review would allocate 

resources between government departments, providing councils with a better 

understanding of the likely resources available in the medium term.  The changes 

meant that there would be additional risks to future funding levels which would 

require careful management.  Therefore, the financial position modelled in the report 

on a current basis, could result in a rather different position by the end of the forecast 

period.  The new Council to be elected in May 2019 would need to be clear about its 

priorities and make resource allocation decisions accordingly.  

It was noted that there were significant areas of uncertainty in the coming years, 

including the impacts of the Brexit process, local government funding changes, and 

the 2017 Business Rate revaluation outcomes locally. The Council had robust risk 

management processes in place and, alongside the quarterly performance reporting, 

would update the likely future impacts as the situation became clearer. 

In developing the Council’s budget proposals for 2019/20, it had managed 

inflationary pressures on operational costs and pressures on some areas of income 

collection.  Areas where net budget reductions had been delivered to produce a 

balanced budget included Leisure Services and Planning. 

Page 43



 

 
 

In order to deliver a balanced budget beyond 2019/20 and develop proposals for a 

secure medium term financial position the Council would seek innovative 

opportunities to achieve the annual budget reductions required without adversely 

affecting service delivery or compromising on its priorities.   

Reports would be presented for deliberation and approval as projects were worked 

up, which would mean a refresh of the Transformation Programme once the future 

funding position became clearer. 

Members asked a range of questions and made various comments on aspects of the 

proposed key proposals, including the consultation responses; treasury management 

training for members; the proposed fees and charges; sourcing and securing 

external funding; the expected reduction in business rates and the 100% pilot that 

allowed the Council to gain more than otherwise it would have; the internal drainage 

board levies; and the proposed council tax increase. 

Members supported the proposals and recommended the draft’s approval to Cabinet 

and Full Council.  

 
The Committee received a presentation on the APPLICATION DATA AROUND 

THE LICENSING PROCESS with respect to Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs).  

All HMOs that house five or more people who form two or more households that 

share basic amenities, regardless of the number of storeys the accommodation is 

spread over, must be licensed and failure to hold a licence or have applied for a 

licence is a criminal offence. 

The Committee heard that, of the 102 applications submitted, only one was likely to 

be refused.  The Council had inspected 101 properties, issued 78 full licences with 

another 22 full licences pending and collected £84,565.90.  In conclusion, it was 

noted that the Borough had 101 well-managed, well-maintained HMOs that provided 

their residents with safe, good quality accommodation and officers were on the street 

to check for compliance, going door to door in areas the data showed were more 

likely to have HMOs. 

 
The Committee received a presentation on the JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

STRATEGY FOR LINCOLNSHIRE (JHWS) from the Chairman of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board, also the County Council’s Executive Councillor for NHS Liaison 

and Community Engagement, and the Director of Public Health for Lincolnshire. 

The purpose of the JHWS was to set out the strategic commissioning direction for 

the next five years for all organisations who commissioned services in order to 

improve the health and wellbeing of the population and reduce inequalities.   

The presentation explained the strategy’s aims and themes and also set out a profile 

of Boston, which included statistics relating to population demographics, deprivation, 

Page 44



 

 
 

healthcare, health inequalities, child and adult health, mental health and the care 

provided by unpaid carers.  Further statistics were set out relating to obesity, 

dementia, physical activity, and the relationship between housing and health.  It was 

stressed that the districts and the county needed to work together on the strategy. 

Members asked a range of questions and discussions covered digital technology 

tools to access help and support in terms of prevention and self-care; the true 

population figures for Boston; the major issue of the increase in the percentage of 

people aged over 65; the significant percentage of early deaths from cardiovascular 

disease considered preventable; vaping significantly reduced risks to health 

compared to smoking cigarettes; the need for everyone to have regular health 

checks, to look after their health and get to know the basics of healthcare, which 

would save money in the long-term.  Social media was used, but a national 

programme and campaign was needed.   

Members also received more information on the considerable impact that improving 

diets would have on health, particularly in relation to diabetes and stroke, and in 

terms of early deaths and disabilities; the significant impact that could be made on 

the level of dental decay if a decision was made to include Boston om the fluoride 

area; lack of physical activity and intake of sugar being the reasons that the 

percentage of overweight or obese children in Boston was the highest in Lincolnshire 

and worse than the national average; how carers were crucial to the success of 

healthcare and needed support; and that physical activity schemes, such as the 

healthy walking groups, helped significantly and were particularly advantageous to 

health and wellbeing if they also involved engaging with other people. 

After in-depth discussions, it was agreed that the strategy should be added to the 

work programme for the Committee to receive a six-monthly update.  

Page 45



 

 
 

Environment and Performance Committee 

At its first meeting the committee received the statutory annual update report CRIME 

& DISORDER ANNUAL REVIEW/ASB/PSPO (ALCOHOL) STATISTICS 2017/18 

by the Anti-Social Behaviour Officer confirming team members on the Council’s 

Community Safety Team, continued to work alongside numerous partner agencies, 

particularly the Neighbourhood Policing Team based at Boston Police Station.  

The second report tabled on this agenda was the statutory annual update report  

CCTV POLICY REVIEW AND ANNUAL PERFORMANCE UPDATE by the 

Community Safety Manager     

Each report is tabled to allow updating on performance factors on the respective 

service areas and to allow members to both review, comment, and also challenge 

the information presented.  The reports are performance monitoring ensuring that 

members are made aware of activity; issues and potential areas which may require 

future scrutiny.    

The second meeting of the committee held on the 17 July 2018 was a single item 

agenda which tabled the final report of the TASK AND FINISH GROUPS’ REVIEW 

OF THE MARKETS OFFER IN BOSTON.  Detailed reporting and discussion took 

place in respect of the depth of the review and the committee agreed the 

recommendations tabled by the group.  (See section 7 below for a more detailed 

report on the Review).  

On the 4th September the Operations Manager presented an update on the 

ENVIRONMENTAL CRIME ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES AND PERFORMANCE 

DURING 2017/18 to enable Members to scrutinise the success of the approach 

taken to tackle environmental crime.   Members were advised the Council provided 

key aims to maintain the cleanliness of the Borough and to ensure the streets and 

public open spaces were kept as clean and tidy as possible and the committee had 

been instrumental in supporting and shaping the robust, strategic and co-ordinated 

approach taken with respect to littering, which had changed from being reactive to 

proactive due to the work undertaken.  The Council had adopted HM Government’s 

Litter Strategy for England in February, which had set out the strategic direction in 

respect of achieving a clean and healthy environment and provided a package of 

tools and new legislation enabling local authorities to deal more effectively with litter 

and environmental crimes. 

Members asked various questions and concerns including the issue of contaminated 

bins and the lack of fixed penalty notices issued for gum and cigarette littering.  

Members also recognised the support of North Sea Camp and the work Fly-Swat 

team in tackling problems.   

 
 

Page 46



 

 
 

 
Outcomes agreed by the committee included an invitation to be issued to all parish 

councils for them to take part in the Litter Champions Programme.  Furthermore it 

was requested that officers provide a breakdown of Fixed Penalty Notices in future 

reporting. 

 
At its meeting on the 8 November 2018 committee were subject to act as consultees 

on the STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY CONSULTATION - BOSTON 

ALTERNATIVE ENERGY FACILITY.  Members were advised that there were only 

two aspects for their consideration within the report tabled:  the first was the 

statement of the consultation whereby members were asked to consider if it was 

reasonable, and if not, to identify any consultation areas which may have been 

missed; the second part required consideration as to whether or not the information 

provided was sufficient to clearly identify what the proposal and structure was. 

Following lengthy deliberation in respect of the consultation by the committee who 

were very thorough in their questioning and considerations, it was agreed that due to 

the significant volume of response, draft minutes would be produced and issued to 

committee members for their consideration.  The Chairman Councillor Judith Skinner 

would be delegated powers to agree the final draft of the minutes and the official 

response, along with, the Deputy Chief Executive and then issue the document for 

Cabinet without the need to reconvene the committee to agree the final response. 

Addressing the first requisite of the report, the committee agreed to request the 

inclusion of additional consultation streams within the consultation process and 

extend the consultation area and venues in order to include a wider scope of 

residents and gain greater feedback; ensure ease of access to the venues all the 

respective residents; allow on-going information to be readily available for public 

interest in the development at a central point 

Addressing the second requisite of the report the committee agreed that additional 

information should be provided to clearly identify the proposal and set out their 

reason in order to all the public to have detailed information to give them a clear 

understanding and allay concerns and offer reassurance. 

Summarising the general comments of the meeting, Members agreed the benefits of 

such a development for the town of Boston.  They acknowledged the employment 

benefits it would create – both in construction and thereafter in on-going supply and 

maintenance.  Consultation was agreed as being key for residents and they agreed 

that the additional requests for inclusion in the statement as identified, would 

reassure them that the scope of consultation was reasonable.   The outstanding 

points for information to be included had also been agreed to allow clear 

identification of the project.   

Page 47



 

 
 

Whilst Members commended the report, they also noted five separate items 

identified for consideration and action by the developer which, although not direct to 

the consultation process, they felt were fundamental in taking the project forward for 

Boston.   

They related to: 

 Information on funding streams available for residents to help them mitigate 

the impact of the construction in their area;  

 Information in respect of potential tendering for work on the development to 

be signposted by the developer to enable local businesses to be made aware 

of opportunities with clear direction on the tendering process;  

 The request for serious consideration of the provision of a link road from the 

roundabout direct to the site should be given as this would also benefit local 

residents and businesses;  

 Serious consideration of a soft landscaping scheme, which would establish 

quicker and provide screening to integrate the site into the landscape;  

 The developer to consult with Royal Mail in respect of the mail drop it 

undertook on their behalf, within a five kilometre radius of the site, as not all 

residents in the close to the site had received the mail shot. 

The Committee recognised the depth of their consideration and scrutiny of the 

consultation exercise and agreed that the outcomes it had produced were 

representative, and on behalf of, both neighbouring and wide ranging residents and 

businesses within the Borough of Boston.   

 
At the same meeting, the Committee received the final version of the JOINT 
MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR LINCOLNSHIRE.  The 
Strategy had been tabled for consultation through the Committee at the last meeting 
of the previous year.   
 
The Committee hosted two briefing events for all Members in 2018/19 relating to the 

development of the Strategy by the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership (LWP) of which 

this Council is a Member. 

The first briefing event in March 2018 was to inform and consult Members on the 

draft version of the Strategy, in particular the proposed strategic objectives, before 

the LWP released the document for three months of public consultation. The briefing 

session was delivered by Officers from the LWP and Head of Environmental 

Operations in order to ensure that Members understood what the strategy was 

setting out to achieve, to shape the draft objectives and to collate relevant comments 

from all members of the Council.  The briefing enabled Officers to assemble the 

feedback and present it to the Committee and seeking approval to submit the 

feedback to the LWP as the Councils formal response to the public consultation on 

the Waste Management Strategy for Lincolnshire. 

Page 48



 

 
 

The second Member Briefing in October 2018 was held to inform Members of the 

changes made to the Strategy and to gather any further feedback to inform the 

decision put before the Committee, to approve (or not) the final version of the 

Strategy for adoption by the Council and the LWP. 

Both Member Briefing events enabled Elected Members to have a very full and frank 

discussion about the Strategy and enabled a broad spectrum of views to inform and 

shape the draft version of the strategy and to fully understand the implications of the 

final Strategy prior to adoption by the Council.  It would not have been possible to 

have covered the same ground within the confines of a Committee meeting nor to 

have engaged the wider elected member cohort in the discussion of a broad topic 

that affected every householder.   

Development of the Strategy been a significant task which the LWP had been 

working on for over a year.  It would provide the cornerstone for future working 

arrangements in the County influencing the way that Lincolnshire Waste Partnership 

worked and the landscape of waste disposal and collection arrangements across the 

county.  It would impact each and every resident of both Boston and Lincolnshire 

and shape how the County Council as a waste disposal authority along with the 

seven district councils would work together to manage the 360000 tonnes of 

household waste produced in Lincolnshire each year.   

Members heard details of the vision sought by the LWP to work together to protect 

the environment by delivering sustainable waste management services which drove 

best value across the County and the core objectives underpinning the vision, along 

with an action plan to steer the delivery.  Public feedback wholeheartedly supported 

the objectives as being right for the people of Lincolnshire and the action plan would 

provide the mechanism through which progress reporting would be provided to, and 

monitored by, the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership.   

The Strategy set out challenging objectives which would require Members of all 

authorities to make difficult choices over the coming year.  The reason being they 

had to fundamentally challenge the way waste services were currently provided to 

residents because of the approaching challenges.   

Members received details of the 147 responses to the public consultation and the 

changes made to the Strategy to reflect the feedback.   Key themes had emerged, 

many of which reflected the feedback from the Committee including education and 

communication to residents, harmonising collection methods and waste streams 

across the county to make it easy to do the right thing.  It was explicit in the feedback 

from the public that we seek to manage costs but not to the detriment of the 

environment. 

The final document included an initial action plan which was absent from the draft 

version. Inclusion of the action plan with the strategy was a direct result of public 

Page 49



 

 
 

feedback and although a work in progress, it provided members with an indication of 

the focus of work for the partnership over the next few months. 

Following further questions and comments, the Committee endorsed the Waste 

Management Strategy for Lincolnshire and recommended to Cabinet for formal 

adopted by the Council (subject to the Strategy in the same form being formally 

adopted by all the waste collection authorities in Lincolnshire).  The Strategy was 

adopted by Cabinet on 28th November 2018, as recommended by the Committee. 

 
All Councillors were invited to attend the meeting held on 8th January 2019 at which 

the Economic Development Manager presented an ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

POSITION STATEMENT to allow members to consider the progress made against 

the rolling economic development action plan.  The report was purely informative 

and Committee were advised that the plan had a clear vision which was to create a 

strong, successful and resilient economy that worked for all by positioning the 

borough as a destination of choice for not only investing in, but for working in, living 

in and also for visiting.   

The Council was challenging perception and unlocking the potential of Boston via 

positive messages and positive marketing to attract even further economic 

investment. 

The plan had four key objectives: 

1. To promote and support inward investment into the borough 

2. To support business development and growth of new and existing business. 

3. To support housing growth and infrastructure development 

4. To develop tourism, heritage and cultural opportunities. 

With all four objectives being closely aligned to the strategic Prosperity Priority set 

out in the Council Plan 2016/17 – 2019/20 to deliver a clear sense of direction and 

overall ‘open for business’ vision for the borough. 

Following a detailed report highlighting economic development within the borough, 

all committee members agreed the professionalism of the reporting and quality of 

content therein.  There was agreement it was a success story which needed to be 

projected across all streams of the media with ongoing increased activity in 

marketing and PR.  There was overall support of the ongoing activity to improve 

promotion of the borough and of working with the students in encouraging a greater 

skills base for local employers.  

 

At its final meeting on 3rd March 2019, the committee considered a report on the 

activity of the PILGRIMS 2020 & ALLIED OPPORTUNITIES EVENTS.  The 

previous year, the committee had agreed a programme of events asked for a follow 

Page 50



 

 
 

up report to allow committee to monitor the outcomes of the funding applications.  A 

further report had been presented to Cabinet on 21st February 2018 detailing the 

ambitions alongside a request for support of specific elements of funding to allow the 

projects to progress.  The requests for funding were approved as it was recognised 

the programme fulfilled the Corporate objectives of:  

 Prosperity – Attracting people and businesses to the area by raising the profile of 

Boston supporting the promotion of inward investment and developing our 

tourism, heritage and cultural opportunities. 

 People – supporting our role in meeting wider health &wellbeing needs of our 

community by continuing to work closely with our partners, & 

 Place – supporting Boston as a place which offers a quality way of life for 

residents. 

Reporting back on the outcomes of the funding applications the officer confirmed that 

The Mayflower 400 group which had been led by Plymouth City Council had secured 

a £500k grant from Visit England in May 2016 to promote the national Mayflower 

Pilgrims story overseas:  during 2018 the Department for Culture, Media and Sport 

agreed a similar amount to allow continuation of activity into 2019. The Mayflower 

400 group which had been led by Plymouth City Council had secured a £500k grant 

from Visit England in May 2016 to promote the national Mayflower Pilgrims story 

overseas:  during 2018 the Department for Culture, Media and Sport agreed a similar 

amount to allow continuation of activity into 2019. 

Plymouth had nationally led the development of a bid to secure Arts Council England 

(ACE) funding to support artistic development of an ‘Illuminate’ event in their region.  

If successful it could help reinforce Boston’s own ‘Illuminate’ event which had been 

delivered successfully over the last five years at the towns Christmas events 

Referencing Boston specific projects the officer advised that a BID for funding of 

£60k had been submitted to build on the HLF funded Explore and Discover project.  

It had been proposed to deliver the project in two stages with the first prioritising 

activities for Pilgrim specific resources ready for early 2020:  the second was 

continuing to develop wider American maritime and local histories to commemorate 

the connections for all audiences.   Boston Borough Council had made a 

commitment to match fund with £10k to support the project and a further £10k had 

been secured through Lincolnshire County Council.    The programme in total would 

cost £80k.  

Funding for the bouys was initially £14k match funding from Boston Big Local 

through a service level agreement with Boston In Bloom.  The Council had through 

its existing budgets agreed to support with a contribution of £1k.  Following work with 

the Environment Agency in respect of exploring investing in the arts, in September 

2018 they agreed to contribute an extra £14k to allow another bouy to be sited close 

to the barrier scheme.    

Page 51



 

 
 

Further updating noted activity across 2020 and also 2030, which was of more 

relevance to Boston and a request was made for further updating as the events 

progressed to allow monitoring of the success of funding and also on the programme 

of events.  

Page 52



 

 
 

6.     Task and Finish Reviews 

LINCOLNSHIRE SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN (STP) TASK 

AND FINISH GROUP  

This group had been set up by the Corporate and Community Committee in 2016/17 

to achieve a greater understanding of the STP, which was published by Lincolnshire 

Health Organisations, at the request of Cabinet in order to guide input into the 

consultation process.   

The group held an initial meeting with the STP Programme Director and scoped their 

activity, agreeing to concentrate on the key issues affecting Boston.  It was 

anticipated a public consultation would commence in September 2017; however, this 

did not materialise and, therefore, the group decided to focus its efforts instead on 

better understanding the context in preparation for the planned consultation and the 

work of the group continued into 2017/18.    

A number of external advisors were appointed on a voluntary basis to form a health 

advisory panel for the group.  A series of fact-finding meetings were subsequently 

set up with senior NHS staff based on topic themes, including mental health and 

learning disabilities, women and children’s services and stroke services. 

A recurring theme emerging at the group’s meetings was the problem of recruiting 

and retention of staff, an issue not unique to NHS Lincolnshire, although it was 

hoped the announcement of the opening of a new Medical School in Lincoln would 

help to ease these problems over time. 

The next step was to arrange an all-Member briefing on the STP in the Spring prior 

to the planned public consultation expected in April, but the consultation was further 

postponed when United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) was placed in 

special measures again.  While significant progress had been made in some key 

areas, particularly mental health and Neighbourhood Teams (integrated working), 

there continued to be significant uncertainty regarding future plans for acute hospital 

services in Lincolnshire and without firm options or proposals it was felt premature to 

proceed with a Member briefing. 

An Acute Services Review was underway, which was expected to suggest significant 

service change and require capital investment.  The STP team was unable to share 

any of its findings at that stage and the latest indications were that this would not be 

available for public consultation in 2018 due to the requirement for national input.  

However, it was suggested that it might be useful for Members to receive a briefing 

on the factors influencing the review, which would have a significant impact on 

Pilgrim Hospital.  Such a briefing could also outline the practical steps currently 

being undertaken by ULHT to try to avoid any form of closure of children’s services 

at Pilgrim Hospital.   

Page 53



 

 
 

On 1st August 2018, the committee considered an update on the Task and Finish 

Group’s work.  At the meeting, the Chairman took questions from nine members of 

the public in accordance with the Council’s procedures for asking questions at 

meetings.   

Guest speakers attended, which were the Accountable Officer for Lincolnshire East 

Clinical Commissioning Group; the Chief Officer for South and South West 

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Groups and Senior Executive with responsibility 

for the Lincolnshire Sustainability and Transformation Partnership; and the Medical 

Director and Consultant Dermatologist, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust.  

The Member of Parliament for Boston and Skegness was also in attendance to 

answer questions and give his views. 

Following presentations, a thorough debate and lengthy question and answer 

session, it was agreed that a workshop be arranged for the group in order to 

examine the outcomes from the committee’s meeting.  The Chairman closed 

proceedings by thanking the members of the public for their input and for their future 

support, as the meeting had demonstrated the value of engaging with the public on 

these matters.   

 

MARKETS REVIEW 

On conclusion of a substantial task and finish review initiated by the Environment 

and Performance Committee, which had scrutinised many services areas across 

Boston with a view to improving the town both as both a tourist destination and for 

the benefit of local people, one area was identified as requiring a more individual in-

depth level of scrutiny.  The group recommended that a new review be undertaken to 

re-visit the existing markets offer at that time and look at ways to maintain Boston’s 

historical market and its unique selling offer, in an ever changing world of consumer 

buying.  

The recommendation was supported by feedback from the initial consultation 

process and a decline in traders on the market and income from the market, which 

could potentially result in both a loss of visitors and also local people supporting the 

markets.   

It was agreed that the same group would execute the new review: the members had 

already accumulated knowledge in respect of the markets from the initial 

consultations and research undertaken.    

During scoping of the review the group agreed further consultation was required and 

that a pre-requisite would be the input of the future users of the markets and the 

future residents of the town.  Looking into the options for inclusion of the schools 

within the task, the group agreed that they would ‘challenge’ schools to undertake 

Page 54



 

 
 

their own review of the markets and then produce their own report of their findings 

and present it at an official meeting of the group. 

Further consultation was agreed with the market traders direct; with the local 

businesses in and around the town centre and with the public consultation via the 

website and also hard copy questionnaires.  Four schools within the borough 

accepted the task and the students were all invited to a meeting at Boston’s Guildhall 

where the Chairman of the group officially set the challenge.   

On Wednesday 16 May 2018 four groups of students, accompanied by teachers 

from their establishments, undertook their official visits to the Boston markets where 

they enthusiastically carried out their own reviews of the market offer at Bargate 

Green and the market offer within the Market Place.  Officers escorted the groups 

and were available to answer questions relating to market activity and the town 

overall. 

On closure of the market traders, the commercial and public consultations, collation 

of the feedback returned common issues from all three.  One of which was the need 

for a better mix on the markets; another was an urgent need for improved promotion 

and better signage across the town centre and other key concerns included issues in 

respect of littering; the impact of the buses through the market place and the 

negative appearance of long term empty shops.  However, there was overwhelming 

support of the markets offer in the town and the benefit of it for both local people and 

as an attraction for visitors.  Furthermore local businesses around the town agreed 

that the market impacted on their own activity in a productive way.  One reassuring 

outcome was the notice by 90% of the market traders who responded, stating it was 

their intent to keep trading in Boston for the foreseeable future. 

The outcome of the students review culminated with each of the four schools 

attending a meeting of the group on July 7 2018 and presenting their reports direct to 

the group members, along with the portfolio holder and the Leader of the Council.   

The students involved presented on behalf of: 

 Boston Grammar School 

 Boston High School 

 Giles Academy 

 Haven High Academy. 

 

The respective teachers from each establishment noted the benefits of the exercise 

for their students and Councillors recognised and congratulated the schools on the 

quality of their reports and on their professionalism of reporting to the meeting and 

their recommendations are noted as follows: 

 A ‘Welcome’ sign needed to be implemented at the entrance to the market 

place from Wide Bargate. 

Page 55



 

 
 

 New bigger signs were needed.   

 There is no sign from Wide Bargate showing where the Market Place is. 

 Street performers should be encouraged to create an atmosphere as the 

market place lacked any atmosphere at all and was dull and drab. 

 Local theatre groups and dance groups should be allowed to perform 

alongside the stalls.  Musicians of all types should be encouraged and offered 

free sites within the market to play.  Specific Cultural events should be put on 

in the summer time. 

 A dedicated Artisan Food area should be provided ideally outside Lloyds Bank 

with the Stump as a back drop.  The Council should actively promote and 

source Artisan traders to a specific Artisan market. 

 The Market should be zoned.  Specific areas for ease of customers with 

possibly colour co-ordinated canopies.  Some areas in the market were 

claustrophobic with stalls too close together whilst others were wide apart 

making it look a mess. 

 The Market Place needs to be cleaner.  Rubbish was over-flowing from bins 

and was dangerous and made the market feel dirty and look unhealthy.  

Furthermore some stalls with fresh food had litter around them. (New Public 

Rubbish Bins have been installed and the Trader Bins now being looked into) 

 The Tourist Information Centre should be re-located onto the market 

especially in the busy months.   

 The market place should be pedestrianised as the buses are dangerous and 

the market could then fill the whole of the market place. 

 More public seating was required.  (New seats have been installed) 

 The canopies needed to be updated all in the same striped theme. 

 A large public notice board should be placed in the market place for ease of 

reference for all residents on activity within the borough. 

 A large public notice board should be put in the market place. 

 A youth market or stalls for students should be introduced during the summer 

holidays alongside the established markets or on Bargate Green.                                             

Pop-Up Foodstalls would also be a good draw especially in the summer 

months, offering foodstuffs not currently on the markets.  It would encourage 

students to use the markets during lunch breaks and in the holidays. 

 The cleanliness of the markets needed improving.  Some stalls looked 

unhygienic.  Pet foods stalls should not be located next to fresh food stalls.  

Smoking and Vaping should not be allowed on the markets. 

 
Here is the link to the schools report: 

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=1339 

 

 

Page 56

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=1339


 

 
 

 

Drawing the review to its conclusion the group’s final task was consideration of the 

Markets Policy to address the main issues highlighted throughout the consultation 

process.  The group agreed the following three amendments to the Markets Policy: 

 

 That no smoking or vaping by traders be permitted on the markets. 

 That the Tennant Mix be simplified in order to allow traders to stand without 

the proportionate allowance being a bar to any trader who turns up to the 

market. 

 That casual traders to be allocated available pitches on the day of the market. 

The final report of the review was tabled through Cabinet on the 5th September 2017 

at where Cabinet agreed the following final recommendations: 

 

1. The amended Markets Policy at Appendix E be adopted with the amendment 

of paragraph 17.1 by deleting the works ‘but shall determine the application 

having due regard to the currently adopted tenant mix’ and the deletion of 

paragraph 9.5. 

2. Investigations into the possibility of implementing a Welcome Archway at the 

entrance to the market place from Narrow Bargate be agreed, with a report 

being returned once the investigations are completed. 

3. The introduction of a ‘Cultural’ offer supporting the markets be agreed. 

4. The consideration of providing stalls for students to trade on during school 

holidays’ to encourage potential future traders be supported. 

5. An increase to the size of the existing signage to provide larger scale signs, in 

particular showing direction from the Market Place to Bargate Green and vice 

versa be agreed. 

6. The importance of the contribution of the four schools within the consultation 

process and the quality of their reporting be recognised and agreed.  

Page 57



 

 
 

7. Inquiry Days 
 

One Inquiry Day was held by the Environment and Performance Committee on 

Monday 14th January 2019 to allow members to look at and discuss the draft 

WASTE RECYCLING OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES POLICY produced to 

consolidate the custom and practice and operational arrangements adopted by the 

waste and recycling services, into one document.   

Members were advised that in general the arrangements would not be changed, nor 

would there be any substantial changes to the current practices. The document 

would eliminate any inconsistencies or misunderstandings in respect of how the 

operational matters were facilitated across the Council:  it would provide a definitive 

reference point for both staff and members of the public and also evidence any back-

up decision making to protect the Council from unfair or unjustified criticism from the 

public or the Ombudsmen.   

On conclusion of the deliberation all members acknowledged the benefits of the 

Inquiry session, agreeing that the open discussions allowed them to fully 

comprehend the new policy and all it entailed.  Members all tabled their support of 

the new policy which they all agreed would provide the all parties with an ease of 

access to source the information they required, alongside supporting the Council in 

respect of any complaint or criticism. 

 
8. Looking to the Year Ahead 
 
The following are being considered in order to continue to support and improve the 

Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function: 

 The early development of work programmes for the year ahead through 

liaison with the Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen and lead officers on both 

Committees; 

 Support for further Inquiry Days and Task and Finish Group activity; 

 The training and development needs of Scrutiny Members; 

 Getting members of the public involved: an ongoing campaign will continue 

with regular features in the Boston Bulletin about attending meetings and how 

to get involved.  

 A “suggestions” form for members of the public to use appears on the next 

page. 

  

Page 58



 

 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SCRUTINY SUGGESTION FORM 
 
 
 
Boston Borough Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees welcome suggestions 
from members of the public who may have ideas for matters that the committees 
could scrutinise.   
 
You can let us know of your suggestions by e-mail to Democratic@boston.gov.uk or 
by completing and detaching the form below and posting it to: Democratic Services, 
Boston Borough Council, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR. 
 
 

 
Name: 
 

 

 
e-mail: 
 

 

 
Telephone: 
 

 

 
Suggestion: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reasons: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 59

mailto:Democratic@boston.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	B. MINUTES
	1 WORK PROGRAMME AND INTRODUCTION TO THE COMMITTEE
	Committee Terms of Reference
	Scrutiny Ways of Working
	Work Programme 2019 - 2020
	Quarter 4 Performance Reporting
	Forward Plan for information
	Annual Scrutiny Report


